
 
 

 
 

Southend-on-Sea Education Board 
 

Tuesday 18th January 2022 
 
I confirm that a meeting of the Education Board (formerly the Schools Forum) will be held 
on Tuesday 18th January 2022 at 8.15am. 
 
 
The meeting will be held remotely via Microsoft Teams. 
         

Robert Harris 
        Clerk to the Forum 

 
A G E N D A  

 

Agenda Item 
 
 

Lead Time 

1. Apologies for absence 
 
 

RH 5mins 

 Schools Forum Matters 
 

  

2. Dedicated Schools Grant 202223 Budget 
Planning and 202122 Budget Update 
 
Report for decision attached 
 

PG 30mins 
 

3. Early Years DSG Reserves 
 
Report for decision attached 
 

EH 30mins 

 Education Board Matters 
 
 

  

3. Matters of the Moment 
 
Verbal report from Director of Education and 
Early Years (no papers) 
 

BM 15mins 

10. Date and times of future meetings 
 
Tuesday 15th March 2022 – 8.15am – Tickfield 
Centre 
Tuesday 21st June – 8.15am – Tickfield Centre 

 

  

 
 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 Page 1 of 11  

 

Southend-on-Sea Borough Council 
 

Executive Director of Finance and Resources 

Executive Director of Children and Public Health 
to 

Education Board 

on 

18th January 2022 
(also following the 2022/23 funding principles agreed at the Education 

Board on the 18th November 2021 and 15th December 2021) 

 

Report prepared by:  
Paul Grout 

Senior Finance Business Partner 
 

Dedicated Schools Grant budget 2022/23 

 
 

 
 
1 Purpose of Report 
 

To present the 2022/23 Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) budget including the 
DSG Individual School budgets for 2022/23, and set the recommended Early 
Years funding rates for 2022/23. 
 

2 Recommendation 
 
2.1 The Early Years funding rates for 2022/23 are agreed as referenced within 

Para. 8.3 to 8.5. 
 

2.2 To agree the approach, as referenced in Para. 9.2 and 9.3, for consideration to 
uplifted banded top up rates for Special Schools and Alternative Provision from 
April 2022, in view of the recent 16th December 2021 additionally DfE 
announced high need DSG supplementary grant funding to support the health 
and social care national insurance levy and wider cost pressures.   

 
2.3 That the remainder of this 2022/23 Dedicated Schools Grant Budget paper, be 

noted, including the DSG individual school budget allocations for 2022/23, and 
these have been set as agreed in accordance with the approved funding 
principles of both the last 15th December 2021 and 18th November 2021 DSG 
Education Board finance papers. 
 
 
 

3 Background 
 
3.1 This paper sets out the proposed Dedicated Schools Grant Budget for the 

financial year 2022/23 which is also to be set by the Council as part of the 
annual budget cycle finalized in February 2022.  
 

Agenda 
Item No. 

 
 

 

1

2



 Page 2 of 11  

 

3.2 This paper also follows both previous and detailed DSG Education Board (EB) 
funding papers considering the 2022/23 budget, as presented, and approved for 
EB recommendation in both the November 2021 and December 2021 board 
meetings. The principle funding decisions approved at both of those previous 
boards are made clear for reference within each section of this paper. 
 

3.3 This paper now also follows the Department for Education (DfE) DSG 2022/23 
funding block announcements made on the 16th December 2021, and release of 
the 2022/23 DfE Authority Proforma Tool (APT) on the 20th December 2021. 

 
3.4 The DfE release of the 2022/23 APT, therefore enables the EB to also formally 

set the final distribution of the 2022/23 school block funds to Individual Schools, 
using the updated numbers on roll for each School as per the latest DfE 
October 2021 school census data, and in line with the previous funding 
agreements of the November 21 meeting which set the 2022/23 per pupil DSG 
rates for each school.  The APT will be submitted back to the DfE by the Local 
Authority (LA).  

 
3.5 This paper also displays the final 2022/23 DSG funding allocations for de-

delegated funds, growth fund, central schools block, early years block (remains 
DfE provisional) and high needs block (High needs in totality only and remains 
DfE provisional). 
  

3.6 And as agreed, at the March 2019 EB Board Meeting, and the December 2019 
Board meeting, this paper present’s the provisional growth fund rates for 
2022/23, as well as an updated and now final growth funding rates for 2021/22. 

 
3.7 On the 25th November 2021, the DfE announced the DSG 2022/23 Early Years 

(EY) funded rates, that announcement now enables the consideration for both 
EY provider rates and EY centrally retained rates to be set for 2022/23 
recommended within this paper (section 8). 

 
3.8 On the 16th December 2021, alongside the DSG allocations for 2022/23 the DfE 

have also officially announced and confirmed an additional supplementary 
grant. For mainstream schools this grant will be paid outside of the DSG, and is 
being provided in respect of both the health and social care national insurance 
(NI) Levy and other wider cost pressures, from 2023/24 it is the DfE’s intention 
to incorporate this grant into the DSG allocations.  An additional separate grant 
for health and social Care NI levy will also be paid for early years provisions in 
schools, maintained nursery schools and post 16 provision within Schools. The 
funding methodology has been published on the DfE website, and school level 
allocations will be published in spring 2022.  Supplementary grant funding to 
support the health and social Care NI Levy and wider cost pressures in special 
schools and alternative provision, has also now been built into the 2023/23 DSG 
high need budget allocation awarding an additional amount of 4% to the DSG 
high needs funds. The DfE have stated they expect those schools, to discuss 
with their LA any increase as part of the top-up funding paid from local 
authorities’ high needs budgets. The additional high need funding also takes 
into account that colleges and other providers offering extra hours of study to 
students with high needs may require additional high needs top-up funding to 
support.  

 

2



 Page 3 of 11  

 

4 Dedicated Schools Grant Allocations 2022/23 (Set by the DfE) 
 
4.1 The Department for Education (DfE) has set out the following funding blocks for 

Southend’s Dedicated Schools Grant for 2022/23 (col.A); 
 

 A B A – B 

 2022/23 
£M 

2021/22* 
£M 

Inc / (dec) 
£M 

Schools Block  137.026 133.046 3.979 

Growth Fund 0.790 0.771 0.019 

Schools Block Subtotal 137.816 133.817 3.999 

Early Years Block (Provisional) 10.125 10.773 (0.648) 

High Need (HN) Block (Provisional)  27.758 25.456 2.302 

HN Additional Supplementary grant 1.007 0 1.007 

Central Block  1.441 1.556 (0.115) 

Grand Total 178.147 171.603 6.544 

 
2021/22* High Need Block is Final, Early Years remains Provisional until July 22  

 
Appendix 2 – “DSG budget 2022/23”, provides the detailed allocation including 
movement from the latest 2021/22 budget. 
 

4.2 Although the EB and LA remain responsible for allocating the entirety of DSG, 
the final actual DSG amount awarded to the LA will exclude funding for 
mainstream academy schools, national non-domestic rates for all mainstream 
schools, High Need place funding for academy schools, colleges and further 
education providers, and free special schools. These excluded amounts are 
paid directly to those settings by the Education and Skills Funding Agency and 
known by the term ‘recoupment’ to DSG funds.  Therefore the final estimated 
allocation expected to be awarded to the LA is £55.958M, after considering 
these estimated recoupment deductions of £122.189M which are also listed 
separately for each funding block in Appendix 2. 
 

4.3 Within the Schools Block funding allocation: 
 

4.3.1 The primary pupil led funding element has been set at £66.513M based on 
a total unit of funding of £4,480.02 per primary pupil (£4,383.76 in 21/22) 
for 14,847 number of pupils (14,995 in 21/22).  The total uplift % per pupil 
is 2.2%.  

4.3.2 The secondary pupil led funding has been set at £69.443M based on a 
total unit of funding of £5,899.78 per secondary pupil (£5,782.65 in 21/22) 
for 11,771 number of pupils (11,455 in 21/22). The total uplift % per pupil 
is 2.0%.  

4.3.3 The premises factor funding is allocated at £1.070M (£1.075M in 21/22) 
and the funding for growth is allocated at £0.790M (£0.771M in 21/22). 

 
4.4 The DfE Early Years funding rates applied to the DSG allocation for 2022/23 

have been set at £4.71 per hour for 3 & 4 year olds (uplift of 3.7% from £4.54 in 
21/22) and £5.61 per hour for 2 year olds (uplift of 3.9% from £5.40 in 21/22).  
The total early years block allocation remains provisional for 2022/23 as the 
allocations will be adjusted for take up of provision by the DfE in July 2022 and 

3



 Page 4 of 11  

 

a further final adjustment in July 2023 (based on the January 2022 and January 
2021 early years census data).   
 

4.5 The high needs block is still provisional until the final funding allocation is 
expected to be announced in July 2022, where by the DfE will be updating the 
final funding allocation in recognition that the authority meets all the high need 
place funding costs in their home area regardless of the pupil’s own home 
authority residence (excluding free special schools). And this is known in the 
DfE high need funding terminology context as the “high need import and export 
funding adjustment”. The home authority will be compensated in relation to high 
need place funding where that authority supports more pupils (than the previous 
year) who live outside of the home resident authority area than pupils they have 
been required to place in another LA area, or on the contrary, a reduction in the 
local funding adjustment will be applied if the opposite event occurs. 

 
4.6 The high needs block provisional allocation has been increased by a further 

£2.302M in 2022/23 on its core funding, and also, as the DfE announced on the 
16th December 2021, an additional DSG supplementary grant amount of 
£1.007M to support the health and social care levy and wider cost pressures. 
 

4.7 The Central Block allocation has been set with an amount of £0.978M for 
ongoing responsibilities (£0.977M for 21/22) funded at a rate of £36.75 per pupil 
for 26,617 pupils (£36.94 rate per pupil and 26,450 pupils in 21/22) funding for 
historic commitments is now set at £0.463M (£0.579M in 21/22). 

 
5 Schools Block – Individual School Block (ISB) allocations - £137.017M 
 
5.1 As illustrated for each School in “Appendix 1 - 2022/23 final Individual school 

budget allocations”. The DfE release of the December APT enables the LA to 
formally set the distribution of the 2022/23 school block funds to individual 
schools, using the updated numbers on roll (NOR) for each School as per the 
latest DfE October 2021 school census data, and in line with the previous 
funding agreements approved at the EB on the 18th November 2021 distributing 
agreed funding amounts per pupil for each school. 
 

5.2 Therefore the funding per pupil (as illustrated in Appendix 1) for individual 
school allocations have been set on the following agreed principles which 
mirrors the National Funding Formulae: 
 

5.2.1 The minimum per pupil levels have been set at £4,265 for primary schools 
(£4,180 in 2021/22) and for secondary schools £5,525 (£5,415 in 
2021/22), both with an equivalent circa 2% increase from 2021/22. And to 
simply remind, from 2020/21 the minimum amounts per pupil are also now 
a mandatory funding factor. 

5.2.2 Where schools are attracting their underlying core NFF allocations, the 
NFF has built in an increase of circa 3.0% from the 2021/22 Pupil led 
funding factors: basic entitlement, free school meals at any time in the last 
6 years, income deprivation affecting children index (IDACI). Lower prior 
attainment (LPA), English as an additional language (EAL), a circa 2% 
increase on Free Schools Meals (FSM) from 2021/22, and separately a 
3.0% increase on the lump sum from 2021/22. 

4



 Page 5 of 11  

 

5.2.3 And for those Schools whose per pupil led funding rate is already above 
both 5.2.1 and 5.2.2, the NFF funding floor per pupil led rate has been set 
at a 2.0% increase from their 2021/22 per pupil led base line. 

 
5.3 Premises factor funding – Again, as shown and required in Appendix 1 all 

funding allocations have separately included NFF estimated 2022/23 business 
rate charges that will be paid centrally from the 1st April 2022 through the ESFA 
to billing authorities. And as referenced in the December 2021 EB paper, 
Schools retain business rates liability and will need to record notional 
accounting entries – income and expenditure in their 2022/23 accounts.     
 
Other key points for noting in the NFF funding formulae and APT: 
 

5.4 Basic entitlement rates per pupil have been set as per the NFF rates, at; 
 
Primary  £3,228.39 
Key Stage 3 £4,552.06 
Key Stage 4 £5,130.10 
 

5.5 The Primary to Secondary funding ratio is set at 1:1.31. 
 

5.6 The numbers of pupil on roll (NOR) in and registered in the APT as per the 
October 2021 census compared to the October 2020 census, has increased by 
a net of 170 pupils, which is a growth of 318 pupils in secondary partially offset 
by a reduction of (148) pupils in primary.  The total NOR in October 2021 is 
therefore now 26,624 pupils (split Primary 14,850 and Secondary 11,774), 
compared to the previous year of 26,454 pupils (split Primary 14,998 and 
Secondary 11,456). 
  

5.7 The total Individual School block allocation for the 2022/23 funding formula is an 
increase in the totality of Individual School block allocations of £4.116M from 
the 2021/22 allocation, which is due to both an overall increase in the NOR and 
funding factors referred to in 5.2. 

 
6 Schools Block – Centrally retained de-delegated lines – £2,775 (applicable 

to maintained schools only) 
 

6.1 The de-delegated per pupil funded amounts have been set as agreed in the EB 
December 2021 paper, at £0.50 per pupil for staff costs covering public duties 
returning an annual de-delegated sum of £2,775.  
 

7 Schools Block – Centrally retained growth fund - £0.796M 
 

7.1 The DSG 2022/23 growth fund amount has been set in accordance with the 
principles agreed in the EB March 2019 and December 2019 papers, where by 
the 2022/23 DSG amount awarded for growth will be held centrally and 
distributed to schools who have been required by the LA to increase their 
number of intake classes. And it continues to remain minded, that as agreed in 
the March 2019 EB paper growth to ensure funding allocations are sensibly 
managed and distributed, that growth funding is managed on a long term basis 
allowing any one year to either over or under spend but provided the total 

5



 Page 6 of 11  

 

application of the growth fund remains affordable within the life cycle of the 
planned growth. 
 

7.2 The EB December 2019 paper, also included a further agreement that if 
affordable to the long term growth model, that as well as formally setting the 
growth funding rates for the following September (in this case from September 
2022), a back dated increase from the previous September (in this case 
September 2021) rate can now also be applied. 

 
7.3 Therefore Appendix 3 displays an updated growth fund model (the original 

model itself was first shared at the March 2019 EB).  And as previously advised 
and shown in the model, the DSG growth funding allocations are determined by 
the DfE, using an annual funded rate per pupil for primary and secondary 
schools, multiplied by their respective positive middle super output area pupil 
growth (MSOA) between the two most recent October census’s.  MSOA has 
always been highlighted as a difficult measure to predict, so hence why it is 
important, and continues to be that model is refreshed on an annual basis. 

 
MSOA* - is defined by the office for national statistic, as a small enough geographical area to detect 
pockets of growth, based on school post codes grouped within a particular area.  
 

7.4 The updated growth model (as shown in Appendix 3) has therefore now been 
been updated considering the following two factors: 
 

7.4.1 The first factor, is the DfE have updated the 2022/23 growth funded per pupil 
rates (funding coming into the DSG) by 2.1% from 2021/22 on primary rates, 
and 1.2% from 2021/22 on secondary rates.  

7.4.2 The second factor, is to remind, MSOA growth is not only driven by the 
requirement of new intake classes but also any further throughput pupil growth 
within a school, for example, if the number of current year 11 pupils are less 
than the current number of year 7 pupils in a school (which can occur 
regardless of any new approved intake class).  Our secondary sector continues 
to positively perform well on this factor in some schools and has been further 
increased moving forward. 
 

7.5 Therefore, based on these factors above the growth rates applied from 
September 21 can now be increased by a further 3% to £3,411 per primary 
pupil and £4,045 per secondary pupil (both now an increase of 8% from the 
September 20 rates), and the opening rates from September 2022 can be 
further uplifted by 5% to £3,582 per primary pupil and £4,257 per secondary 
pupil.  The rates still remain below the NFF minimum rates per pupil distributed 
in the ISB, but it also remains minded, these rates are not intended to be at the 
NFF minimum rates as growth is only temporary support funding for new intake 
classes until that year’s pupil growth is formally captured in the annual October 
census and therefore core funding of a school. But none the less welcome that 
these funding increases can still be applied.  
 

7.6 And as previously agreed, whilst we await under a Hard NFF any further DfE 
announcements in terms of awarding national growth allocations, the growth 
Fund model will continue to be updated on an annual basis, shared in this 
annual January paper declaring rates for the following academic year (within the 
minimum tolerances rate levels as set in the March 2019 EB paper, used only, if 
required to remain affordable to the allocation), and with the additional step of a 

6



 Page 7 of 11  

 

backed dated funding increase only, if affordable, to the rates declared at the 
start of the current academic funded year.  

 
8 Early Years Block (Provisional) - £10.125M in total 
 
8.1 As refenced in para 3.7 and 4.4. The DfE announced on the 25th November 

2021, the DSG funded rates for 2022/23 which also includes a provisional 
update to the 2022/23 totality of funds based on the traditional January 2021 EY 
census. The DfE have also announced for 2022/23 that they will return to the 
traditional annual January EY census’ of funding, and the final 2022/23 
allocation will therefore be based on 5/12s of the January 2022 PTE census 
numbers (to cover the period April 2022 to Aug 2022) and 7/12s of the January 
2023 PTE census numbers (to cover the period Sept 2022 to March 2023) 
which will be announced in July 2023.  In July 2022, there will be update to the 
2022/23 provisional allocation based on January 2022 PTE census numbers 
only.  
 
PTE* as DfE defined, assumes all children access the full 15hrs per week support over 38 
weeks in the year. 
 

To simply remind, in 2021/22 in response to Covid the DfE are funding 
allocations on EY termly census allocations, rather than the traditional January 
census’s. 
 

8.2 Appendix 4, displays the recommended 2022/23 EY funding rates and 
provisional allocation alongside the current 2021/22 budget allocation which is 
still currently based on the January 2020 EY census (pre-full covid impact). And 
as referenced in the December 2021 EB paper based, there is a reduction in 
the 2022/23 provisional PTE take up from provisional 2021/22 of approximately 
10% across 3 and 4 year old core and extended entitlement and 2 year old 
eligibility core take up, and an increase of 40% on Early Years Pupil Premium 
take up.   
 

8.3 With consideration to the DfE uplifted EY rates, and with recognition of further 
financial strain on EY providers to help contribute to National Minimum and 
Living Wage increases, as well as inflationary cost pressures it remains 
recommended for 2022/23 that Southend continues to passport through 3 and 4 
year old funding at a rate of 98% of total funding to providers, which still 
remains 3% above the statutory minimum requirement of 95%. For 2022/23, 
this will set a 3&4 year old core universal and extended entitlement provider 
rate of £4.53 per hour.  This is a 15 pence increase per hour (of the 17 pence 
per hour increase awarded through national DfE allocations) from 2021/22. The 
remaining 2 pence increase of the uplifted 17 pence per hour is proposed to 
further support EY central funds. Current provision, as traditionally honoured 
has allowed for a small centrally retained fund to continue to support EY 
training, support and advise and SEND inclusion.   An additional 2 pence per 
hour will allow for a small increase to this fund of £21,000 (based on the revised 
2022/23 PTE allocation). This additional funding will be used by the Head of 
Early Years to employ an additional member of staff to further support 
providers, managed within the wider provisional centrally retained fund of 
£169,000 in totality for 3&4 year olds. This post will be used to increase the 
efficiency and capacity of supporting front line queries and guidance for the 
monthly payment process, and wider EY support to encourage further EY take 

7



 Page 8 of 11  

 

up where eligible. It is also proposed that the mandatory deprivation rate which 
is passported to providers (based on EYPP eligibility), is also maintained at 0.44 
per hour. 
 

8.4 It is also proposed that the 2022/23 2 year old provider eligibility entitlement rate 
for disadvantaged 2 years old is set at £5.57 per hour. This awards the 
maximum increase of 21 pence per hour from the DfE allocation. And continues 
to retain the small centrally retain fund of now provisional £9,000 per annum. 
The DfE do not set a regulatory passport requirement amount on this fund, but 
report this is because most local authorities do already passport this funding 
through to providers. 

 
8.5 As displayed in Appendix 4, The DfE have also set the 2022/23 allocations for 

both the Disability Access Fund (DAF) and Early years pupil premium (EYPP). 
Which are 100% passported through based on eligibility. The EYPP rate for 
2022/23 is £0.60 per hour (increase of 7 pence per hour from 2021/22), and the 
DAF rate for 2022/23 is £800 per child, (an increase of £185 per child from 
2021/22).  

 
8.6 It is noted, within this paper that there is a separate paper (at this EB) from the 

Head of Early Years requesting access to the available DSG Early Years 
balances over the next 2 years. Whilst it is pleasing to confirm that these 
requests can be funded (subject to EB approval) from the EY DSG reserve, 
consideration to funding these further EY centrally retained provisions of 
services on an ongoing basis should they prove successful, will therefore need 
to be considered as part of the 2023/24 and 2024/25 EY budget allocations.  

 
9 High Needs Block (Provisional) - £28.765M 

 
9.1 As first shared in the October 2021 EB DSG report, including an explanation of. 

The 2022/23 High Needs block under NFF has seen further confirmed growth in 
funding from the DfE of £2.301M compared to the latest 2021/22 budget 
allocation, and plus now as highlighted in 3.8, an additional DSG supplementary 
DfE grant announced on the 16th December 2021 of £1.007M to support wider 
cost pressures in high needs funding, as well as health and social care NI levy 
costs within Special Schools and Alternative provision.   
 

9.2 As previously agreed with EB (and annual cycle of DSG funding papers), the 
detailed funding allocation of the 2022/23 high need funding to service lines will 
be presented at the June 2022 EB, as this then allows both sufficient time for 
the most accurate planning of expected top up funding amounts in the following 
academic year and also therefore considering any standard affordable uplifts 
alongside. However, given that this now welcome additional grant of £1.007M to 
support health and social care NI levy cost for special schools and alternative 
provision, alongside wider cost pressures, has been announced to take effect 
from April 2022. And it is the DfE’s intention that they expect those schools to 
discuss with the LA, any increases to top up funding to support increase cost 
pressures. And given, the now thankfully financial healthy position of our High 
Needs DSG position, it is proposed that this action is now commenced leading 
up to and for implementation from April 2022.  This work will therefore need to 
commence on the current top up special school banded model rates from April 
2022, and including but separately alternative provision. The work will need to 

8



 Page 9 of 11  

 

be lead by the LA officers Head of SEND, Head of Access and Inclusion and 
Senior Finance Business Partner in communications with the respective 
schools. 
 

9.3 Although it is not a DfE statutory requirement that the EB approve the final top 
up amounts as this is ultimately set by the LA, it is expected to form part of the 
consultation, and in view of our good local governance practise, whereby, the 
LA seeks EB approval for any changes to top up rates (including consultation 
through the Resources Sub Group), it is advised for transparency and good 
governance, the result of this work is shared at the June 2022 EB. This work will 
then also form part of setting the wider detail of the high need budget 2022/23. 
Should this pose any unlikely challenges, any backdated top up rate increases 
could be applied from April 2022 following the June 2022 EB.  

 
10 Central Block - £1.441M 

 
10.1 The central block budgets have been set in accordance with agreement of the 

December 2021 DSG EB paper.  
 

10.2 The final 2022/23 amounts are therefore confirmed as;  
 

From Central Schools Services Block Amount  

Combined budgets / historic commitments £463,304  

Copyright Licences* £142,987  

Schools Admissions £275,617  

Servicing of Schools Forum £18,700  

Protected centrally employed teacher employer 
pension contribution 

£95,332  

Retained Duties* £445,539  

 £1,441,479  

 
Copyright Licences* - annual copyright licence charge set by DfE. 

 
Retained Duties* - Former Education Services Grant - ongoing funding to support LA Statutory duties – for 
Child and Educational Leadership, Planning and Budget planning, monitoring, Education Welfare and 
Asset Management 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9



 Page 10 of 11  

 

11 DSG current anticipated reserve levels as at 31st March 2022 
 
11.1 The table below updates the current expected DSG reserve balance by year 

end, reflecting the balances as presented in the December 2021 EB DSG paper 
with exception of a revised growth fund forecast and updated future draw down 
of balances agreed at the December 2021 EB Board. It remains minded, the 
reserve balance table now also includes as formally agreed through the EB 
DSG October 2021 paper, the presentation of recommended minimum reserve 
balances for each block, and where reserve forecast balances are now above 
those minimum recommended balances the following DSG expenditure 
conditions apply for the one off use of those reserve balances:  

 

11.1.1 That any one off cumulative use of reserve balances below £50,000 in any one 
financial year has the required LA lead officer approval to proceed, but on the 
conditional basis this is reported through to EB. 
 

11.1.2 That any single expenditure item or where the cumulative use of reserve 
balance was to fall above £50,000 in any one financial year then EB approval is 
firstly required. If the item or the matter is urgent, then approval can be given by 
an urgent virtual EB agreement but with a subsequent note to the actual and 
following scheduled EB meeting for formal minuting.  
 

Block 
Schools 
– ISB  

 
Schools 

- 
growth 

 
Schools – 

de-
delegate 

Early 
Years 

High 
Needs Central Total 

 £’000 
 

£’000 
 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

        
Reserves surplus 
/ (deficit) 
 
        
1 April 2021 B’fwd 0  182  14  1,105 3,003          177  4,481 

Agreed Issue to 
2021/22 budget 0 0 0 (112) (60) 0 (112) 

Early years funding 
adjustment 
2020/21  0 0 0 (45) 0 0 (45) 

2021/22 current 
forecast variance 0 (61) 0 0 2,903 149 3,008 

31 March 2022 0 121 14 948 5,846 326 7,255 

        

Agreed Issue to 
future yr budgets    0 (150)  (150) 

Recommended 
Minimum Reserve 

balance 0 121 14 500 2,301 326 3,263 

        
One off Funding 

Available for 
DSG 

Conditional Use     448 3,395  3,842 

10



 Page 11 of 11  

 

 
12 Conclusion 

 
12.1 The overall position set out for 2022/23 is a balanced DSG budget, with a 

current expected, positive and adequate level of DSG funding reserves carried 
forward into 2022/23. 
 

12.2 Overall, it has to continue to be recognised that the 2022/23 funding 
announcements for both the Schools and High Needs block are a welcome 
message for Dedicated School Grants funds and therefore the children and 
educational services provision those funds support. 
 

12.3 Combined with both the positive DSG reserve balance position does also 
continue to highlight current and effective management of DSG funds over 
recent years through both the Local Authority and Education Board. This 
continues to therefore further support long term and sustainable funding for 
Southend pupils and our educational community.  
 
 
Appendices  

 
Appendix 1 – DSG Final Individual Schools Budget allocations 2022/23 
 
Appendix 2 – DSG Budget 2022/23 and comparison to 2021/22 
 
Appendix 3 – DSG Growth fund rates from Sept-22 and updated from Sept-21 
 
Appendix 4 – Early Years funded rates 2022/23 

11



This page is intentionally left blank



A B B1 B2

B3 = IF(B > ((B1 * 

B2) + B1), "B" , (B1 * 

B2) + B1))

C
D = ((A * B3) + C ) / 

A

E = ((A * B3) + C 

) 
F G H I = E + F + G + H J = I - H - G K L = J - K O P = A - O

Recommend, if printed, to print in A3 Landscape

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

URN*
Primary / 

Secondary

Maintained / 

Academy
School Name

22/23 

NOR *

22/23 Core NFF 

Pupil led Rate

21/22 MFG 

pupil led rate 

*

22/23 uplift % 

from the 21/22 

per pupil led rate

22/23 pupil led rate 

per pupil

22/23 NFF 

Lump Sum

22/23 pupil led 

rate (including 

lump sum)

22/23 Total 

pupil led 

amount + lump 

sum

22/23 

Approved 

exceptional 

circumstance 

funding

22/23 De-

delegation

22/23 

Business 

rates Est.

22/23 Final 

Individual School 

Allocation

22/23 Total 

allocation less 

22/23 rates Est.

21/22 Total 

allocation less 

21/22 rates

 + increase / 

(decrease)
21/22 NOR

+ NOR 

Increase / 

(decrease)

114718 Primary Maintained Chalkwell Hall Junior School 478 £3,673.48 £3,924.27 2.19% £4,010.34 £121,729 £4,265.00 2,038,670         0 -239 21,332 2,059,763 2,038,670           1,989,680           48,990 476               2

114719 Primary Maintained Chalkwell Hall Infant School 357 £3,686.51 £3,843.73 2.09% £3,924.02 £121,729 £4,265.00 1,522,605         0 -179 14,845 1,537,272 1,522,605           1,513,160           9,445 362               (5)

114720 Primary Maintained Earls Hall Primary School 630 £3,760.23 £3,987.08 2.12% £4,071.78 £121,729 £4,265.00 2,686,950         0 -315 47,360 2,733,995 2,686,950           2,637,580           49,370 631               (1)

114774 Primary Maintained Leigh North Street Primary School 612 £3,609.14 £3,977.79 2.22% £4,066.10 £121,729 £4,265.00 2,610,180         0 -306 38,144 2,648,018 2,610,180           2,516,360           93,820 602               10

114780 Primary Maintained West Leigh Infant School 356 £3,583.76 £3,841.86 2.11% £3,923.06 £121,729 £4,265.00 1,518,340         0 -178 23,204 1,541,366 1,518,340           1,504,800           13,540 360               (4)

114787 Primary Maintained Barons Court Primary School and Nursery 245 £4,039.85 £3,907.10 3.40% £4,039.85 £121,729 £4,536.70 1,111,492         0 -123 26,368 1,137,737 1,111,492           1,071,155           40,337 243               2

114789 Primary Maintained Heycroft Primary School 398 £3,636.58 £3,876.44 2.13% £3,959.15 £121,729 £4,265.00 1,697,470         0 -199 42,240 1,739,511 1,697,470           1,676,180           21,290 401               (3)

114841 Primary Maintained Fairways Primary School 416 £3,689.96 £3,890.86 2.10% £3,972.38 £121,729 £4,265.00 1,774,240         0 -208 45,235 1,819,267 1,774,240           1,759,780           14,460 421               (5)

115145 Primary Maintained St Mary's, Prittlewell, CofE Primary School 658 £4,147.77 £4,091.53 2.00% £4,173.37 £121,729 £4,358.36 2,867,804         123,847 -329 10,829 3,002,151 2,991,651           2,974,630           17,021 667               (9)

134860 Primary Maintained Eastwood Primary School & Nursery 403 £4,073.73 £4,564.33 2.00% £4,655.61 £121,729 £4,957.67 1,997,942         0 -202 6,195 2,003,935 1,997,942           1,915,510           82,432 393               10

134861 Primary Academy Edwards Hall Primary School 382 £3,712.25 £3,868.67 2.01% £3,946.34 £121,729 £4,265.00 1,629,230         0 -191 32,000 1,661,039 1,629,230           1,634,380           (5,150) 391               (9)

115313 Primary Maintained Milton Hall Primary School and Nursery 614 £4,454.14 £4,686.85 2.00% £4,780.59 £121,729 £4,978.85 3,057,012         0 -307 12,083 3,068,788 3,057,012           3,018,205           38,807 618               (4)

140672 Primary Academy Prince Avenue Academy and Nursery 398 £4,355.55 £4,194.68 3.83% £4,355.55 £121,729 £4,661.40 1,855,238         0 0 9,370 1,864,608 1,855,238           1,816,382           38,856 404               (6)

142683 Primary Academy Porters Grange Primary School and Nursery 352 £4,783.57 £4,754.94 2.00% £4,850.04 £121,729 £5,195.86 1,828,942         0 0 8,141 1,837,083 1,828,942           1,747,918           81,024 342               10

144987 Primary Academy Our Lady of Lourdes Catholic Primary School 415 £3,566.89 £3,889.48 2.11% £3,971.68 £121,729 £4,265.00 1,769,975         0 0 6,810 1,776,785 1,769,975           1,751,420           18,555 419               (4)

145010 Primary Academy Westborough Academy 408 £4,314.25 £4,172.28 3.40% £4,314.25 £121,729 £4,612.60 1,881,942         0 0 8,602 1,890,544 1,881,942           1,907,465           (25,523) 428               (20)

143335 Primary Academy Hamstel Junior School 567 £4,262.73 £4,158.79 2.50% £4,262.73 £121,729 £4,477.42 2,538,697         0 0 7,987 2,546,684 2,538,697           2,504,714           33,983 573               (6)

143340 Primary Academy Hamstel Infant School and Nursery 420 £4,198.10 £4,130.14 2.00% £4,212.75 £121,729 £4,502.58 1,891,083         0 0 7,885 1,898,968 1,891,083           1,967,904           (76,821) 447               (27)

143333 Primary Academy Hinguar Community Primary School 210 £3,905.54 £3,931.61 2.00% £4,010.24 £121,729 £4,589.90 963,880             0 0 8,448 972,328 963,880               947,367               16,513 210               0

143338 Primary Academy Greenways Primary School 947 £4,116.34 £4,057.52 2.00% £4,138.67 £121,729 £4,267.22 4,041,054         0 0 16,179 4,057,233 4,041,054           4,114,333           (73,279) 984               (37)

142753 Primary Academy West Leigh Junior School 515 £3,528.66 £3,946.35 2.08% £4,028.63 £121,729 £4,265.00 2,196,475         0 0 6,400 2,202,875 2,196,475           2,177,780           18,695 521               (6)

144877 Primary Academy Bournes Green Junior School 262 £3,591.14 £3,718.90 2.19% £3,800.38 £121,729 £4,265.00 1,117,430         0 0 5,478 1,122,908 1,117,430           1,103,520           13,910 264               (2)

140536 Primary Academy Darlinghurst Academy 482 £3,980.22 £3,961.46 2.00% £4,040.68 £121,729 £4,293.24 2,069,339         0 0 10,189 2,079,528 2,069,339           2,328,260           (258,921) 557               (75)

143339 Primary Academy Bournes Green Infant School 180 £3,695.30 £3,741.56 2.00% £3,816.40 £121,729 £4,492.67 808,681             0 0 3,405 812,086 808,681               795,211               13,470 180               0

144694 Primary Academy Temple Sutton Primary School 643 £4,409.73 £4,204.53 4.88% £4,409.73 £121,729 £4,599.05 2,957,188         0 0 14,848 2,972,036 2,957,188           2,892,516           64,672 659               (16)

143337 Primary Academy Blenheim Primary School 619 £3,813.89 £3,980.77 2.20% £4,068.35 £121,729 £4,265.00 2,640,035         0 0 14,157 2,654,192 2,640,035           2,553,980           86,055 611               8

145678 Primary Academy Sacred Heart Catholic Primary School 417 £4,287.37 £4,196.48 2.17% £4,287.37 £121,729 £4,579.29 1,909,564         0 0 5,018 1,914,582 1,909,564           1,741,571           167,993 386               31

146015 Primary Academy St Helen's Catholic Primary School 411 £4,151.25 £4,067.21 2.07% £4,151.25 £121,729 £4,447.43 1,827,894         0 0 4,941 1,832,835 1,827,894           1,687,605           140,289 385               26

146016 Primary Academy St George's Catholic Primary School 210 £3,993.69 £3,844.51 3.88% £3,993.69 £121,729 £4,573.35 960,404             0 0 4,736 965,140 960,404               921,387               39,017 208               2

143966 Primary Academy Bournemouth Park Academy 542 £4,507.65 £4,540.75 2.00% £4,631.56 £121,729 £4,856.16 2,632,037         0 0 7,885 2,639,922 2,632,037           2,573,734           58,303 540               2

144878 Primary Academy Richmond Avenue Primary and Nursery School404 £4,121.99 £4,156.89 2.00% £4,240.02 £121,729 £4,541.33 1,834,699         0 0 6,195 1,840,894 1,834,699           1,801,112           33,588 404               0

143334 Primary Academy Friars Primary School and Nursery 410 £4,309.23 £4,299.08 2.00% £4,385.06 £121,729 £4,681.96 1,919,603         0 0 8,448 1,928,051 1,919,603           1,901,547           18,056 414               (4)

143336 Primary Academy Thorpedene Primary School 489 £4,530.92 £4,502.76 2.00% £4,592.82 £121,729 £4,841.75 2,367,617         0 0 11,162 2,378,779 2,367,617           2,359,602           8,015 497               (8)

141741 Secondary Academy Chase High School 936 £6,295.53 £6,262.35 2.00% £6,387.60 £121,729 £6,517.65 6,100,525         0 0 42,614 6,143,139 6,100,525           5,908,145           192,380 924               12

143144 Secondary Academy Southchurch High School 825 £6,321.56 £6,918.60 2.00% £7,056.97 £121,729 £7,204.53 5,943,733         0 0 40,448 5,984,181 5,943,733           5,359,111           584,622 757               68

147185 Secondary Academy Cecil Jones Academy 706 £6,538.31 £6,488.79 2.00% £6,618.57 £121,729 £6,790.99 4,794,438         0 0 36,608 4,831,046 4,794,438           4,287,534           506,904 642               64

137733 Secondary Academy Shoeburyness High School 1,520 £5,910.16 £5,857.02 2.00% £5,974.16 £121,729 £6,054.24 9,202,449         0 0 56,832 9,259,281 9,202,449           8,848,685           353,764 1,490            30

136272 Secondary Academy Westcliff High School for Boys Academy 908 £5,004.87 £5,280.64 2.09% £5,390.94 £121,729 £5,525.00 5,016,700         0 0 29,696 5,046,396 5,016,700           4,905,990           110,710 906               2

137284 Secondary Academy The Eastwood Academy 1,111 £5,526.25 £5,418.77 2.00% £5,527.15 £121,729 £5,636.72 6,262,391         0 0 27,136 6,289,527 6,262,391           5,936,073           326,319 1,073            38

136490 Secondary Academy Westcliff High School for Girls 909 £5,021.43 £5,280.79 2.09% £5,391.08 £121,729 £5,525.00 5,022,225         0 0 37,094 5,059,319 5,022,225           4,911,405           110,820 907               2

136444 Secondary Academy Southend High School for Girls 898 £5,034.61 £5,279.75 2.08% £5,389.44 £121,729 £5,525.00 4,961,450         0 0 30,208 4,991,658 4,961,450           4,873,500           87,950 900               (2)

138174 Secondary Academy Belfairs Academy 1,393 £5,439.59 £5,323.75 2.18% £5,439.59 £121,729 £5,526.98 7,699,083         0 0 56,385 7,755,468 7,699,083           7,223,610           475,473 1,334            59

136443 Secondary Academy Southend High School for Boys 890 £5,006.22 £5,279.29 2.06% £5,388.23 £121,729 £5,525.00 4,917,250         0 0 34,560 4,951,810 4,917,250           4,857,255           59,995 897               (7)

137310 Secondary Academy St Thomas More High School 872 £5,552.55 £5,439.70 2.07% £5,552.55 £121,729 £5,692.15 4,963,554         0 0 37,376 5,000,930 4,963,554           4,718,275           245,278 845               27

137312 Secondary Academy St Bernard's High School 806 £5,439.05 £5,377.03 2.00% £5,484.58 £121,729 £5,635.60 4,542,297         0 0 20,787 4,563,084 4,542,297           4,321,194           221,104 781               25

26,624 135,949,806 123,847 -2,775 945,863 137,016,741 136,073,653 131,957,524 4,116,129 26,454 170

* URN = DfE's defined Schools "Unique Reference Number"

* NOR = Numbers on roll. 22/23 as per the October 2021 school census

NOTE - All Academy Schools 22/23 funding changes are applicable from Sept 2022 (start of the 2022/23 academic year), Maintained School 22/23 funding changes are applicable from Apr 2022 (The local authority financial year) 

Appendix 1 - DSG Final Individual Schools Budget allocations 

2022/23

* 21/22 MFG pupil led rate - as defined by the DfE under NFF, has been baselined to the 21/22 individual schools per pupil led rate less the 22/23 change in the NFF lump sum rate from 21/22 per 21/22 NOR 

pupils 

13



Appendix 2 - DSG Budget 2022/23 and comparison to 2021/22 A B C = A + B D E = D - C F G = F - C

Recommend, if printed, to print in A3 Portrait

£ £ £ £ £ £ £

Block S251 Line ref. Summary Line Original Budget

In Year Budget 

adjustments Latest Budget

Forecast 

Outturn*

Forecast 

Variance Over / 

(under) Original  Budget

Budget Variation 

from previous year 

increase / 

(decrease)

1.0.1 Maintained - Primary 24,528,472 - 24,528,472 24,528,472 - 23,003,776 (1,524,696)

1.0.1 Maintained - Secondary - - - - - - -

1.0.1 Academy Recoupment - Primary 41,771,611 - 41,771,611 41,771,611 - 43,641,007 1,869,396

1.0.1 Academy Recoupment - Secondary 66,600,521 - 66,600,521 66,600,521 - 69,426,095 2,825,574

X.X.X 22/23 NNDR - recoupment all schools 945,863 945,863

Subtotal Individual School Block allocations 132,900,604 - 132,900,604 132,900,604 - 137,016,741 4,116,137 

1.1.8 De-delegated - Staff costs (Public duties) 2,783 - 2,783 2,783 - 2,775 (8)

1.4.10 Growth Fund 913,844 - 913,844 974,723 60,879 796,231 (117,613)

Schools Block Total 133,817,231 - 133,817,231 133,878,110 60,879 137,815,747 3,998,516

Early Years 1.0.1 2 year old provision 1,332,587 - 1,332,587 1,332,587 - 1,231,353 (101,234)

1.0.1 3 and 4 y/o provision - Universal 6,999,109 - 6,999,109 6,999,109 - 6,600,024 (399,085)

1.0.1 3 and 4 y/o provision - Additional 2,128,938 - 2,128,938 2,128,938 - 1,894,648 (234,290)

1.0.1 Disability Access Fund 57,195 - 57,195 57,195 - 68,000 10,805

1.0.1 Early Years Pupil Premium 98,266 - 98,266 98,266 - 153,104 54,838

1.3.1 Central Expenditure (CE) on Children under 5 157,039 - 157,039 157,039 - 178,074 21,035

1.3.1 CE EB Agreed one off investment funded from Reserves 112,000 - 112,000 112,000 - (112,000)

Early Years Block Total 10,885,134 - 10,885,134 10,885,134 - 10,125,204 (759,930)

High Needs 1.0.2 Place Funding - Special Schools - - - - - - -

1.0.2 Place Funding - Special Schools Recouped 6,070,000 - 6,070,000 6,036,667 (33,333) 6,070,000 -

1.0.2 Place Funding - PRU 41,667 - 41,667 41,667 - 41,667 -

1.0.2 Place Funding - PRU Recouped 808,333 - 808,333 808,333 - 808,333 -

1.0.2 Place Funding - Special Units 128,000 - 128,000 160,500 32,500 128,000 -

1.0.2 Place Funding - Special Units Recouped 342,000 - 342,000 294,500 (47,500) 342,000 -

1.10.2 Place Funding - Free School Recouped - 50,000 50,000 29,167 (20,833) 50,000 -

1.0.2 Place Funding - CCP and FE Recouped 864,000 - 864,000 846,000 (18,000) 864,000 -

Subtotal Place funding 8,254,000 50,000 8,304,000 8,216,833 (87,167) 8,304,000 -

1.2.2 Special School - flexible place funding 40,000 - 40,000 40,000 - 40,000 -

1.2.1 / 1.2.2 Special School Top ups 5,200,000 - 5,200,000 5,200,000 - 5,200,000 -

1.2.1 / 1.2.2 Special School - teacher pay and employer pension former grant 388,000 388,000 387,669 (331) 388,000 -

1.2.1 / 1.2.2 Special Units Top ups / compensation place funding 380,000 - 380,000 380,000 - 380,000 -

1.2.2 PRU Top ups 425,000 - 425,000 418,200 (6,800) 425,000 -

1.2.2 PRU / AP - teacher pay and employer pension former grant 82,500 82,500 82,495 (5) 82,500 -

1.2.2 Preventative Pathway AP top ups 266,000 - 266,000 250,000 (16,000) 266,000 -

Subtotal Special School and PRU / AP provision top up funding 6,781,500 - 6,781,500 6,758,364 (23,136) 6,781,500 -

1.2.1 / 1.2.2 EHCP Early years Top ups 130,000 - 130,000 80,000 (50,000) 130,000 -

1.2.1 / 1.2.2 EHCP Inborough Mainstream - Primary Top ups 1,800,000 - 1,800,000 1,610,000 (190,000) 1,800,000 -

1.2.1 / 1.2.2 EHCP Inborough Mainstream - Secondary Top ups 850,000 - 850,000 780,000 (70,000) 850,000 -

1.2.1 / 1.2.2 EHCP Top ups - out of Borough 850,000 - 850,000 830,000 (20,000) 850,000 -

1.2.2 EHCP Top ups - post 16 providers 850,000 - 850,000 800,000 (50,000) 850,000 -

EHCP top up provision schools and post-16 4,480,000 - 4,480,000 4,100,000 (380,000) 4,480,000 -

1.2.3 EHCP funding for Independent providers (IP) 1,700,000 - 1,700,000 1,500,000 (200,000) 1,700,000 -

1.2.7 Alternative Provision (non EHCP and LAC Residential Care*) for IP 250,000 - 250,000 250,000 - 250,000 -

Independent providers 1,950,000 - 1,950,000 1,750,000 (200,000) 1,950,000 -

1.2.4 HN targeted LCHI funding 10,000 - 10,000 - (10,000) 10,000 -

1.2.6 Hospital Education provision 100,000 - 100,000 50,000 (50,000) 100,000 -

1.2.7 Individual Tuition service 250,000 - 250,000 220,000 (30,000) 250,000 -

1.2.5 SEND team - contribution towards Early Years SENCOs and Education Psychology 635,000 - 635,000 635,000 - 635,000 -

1.2.5 SEN Support Services 211,500 - 211,500 211,500 - 211,500 -

1.2.8 Inclusion Service 590,000 60,000 650,000 560,000 (90,000) 590,000 (60,000)

1.2.5 Elective Home Education Costs (EHCP) 20,000 - 20,000 10,000 (10,000) 20,000 -

1.2.5 Elective Home Education Costs (Alternative Provision) 47,000 - 47,000 42,000 (5,000) 47,000 -
1.2.11 Direct payments 100,000 - 100,000 60,000 (40,000) 100,000 -

Other High Need funding provision including SLA's 1,963,500 60,000 2,023,500 1,788,500 (235,000) 1,963,500 (60,000)

2021/22

Schools block - 

Centrally retained

High Need 22/23 

detail budget 

allocation to be 

allocated at the 

Education Board 

in June 2022

2022/23

Schools Block - 

Individual School 

Block allocations

Total  High Need Non-Place funding 15,175,000 60,000 15,235,000 14,396,864 (838,136) 15,175,000 (60,000)

High Need 22/23 

detail budget 

allocation to be 

allocated at the 

Education Board 

in June 2022

High Needs block service lines total 23,429,000 110,000 23,539,000 22,613,697 (925,303) 23,479,000 (60,000)

1.02 / 1.2.2 Further enhanced mainstream EHCP place based provision and top up funding 600,000 600,000 - (600,000) 600,000 -

1.02 / 1.2.2 Further Alternative place based provision and top up funding 600,000 600,000 - (600,000) 600,000 -

1.2.5 Further service provision for Wider SEND support 600,000 600,000 - (600,000) 600,000 -

Funding alloctions for required future service provision (to be developed during 2021/22) 1,800,000 1,800,000 (1,800,000) 1,800,000 -

1.2.3 2022/23 Original Additional Funding to be allocated at the June 22 Education Board 2,301,648

1.2.3

2022/23 Additional supplementary funding awarded to support Health and Social Care 

levy and wider cost pressures in Special Schools, Alternative provision and additional 

top up pupil study hours where applicable for college and other providers

1,006,648

1.2.3 Balance held aside from service provision to support any in year high need funding pressures 329,437 (152,000) 177,437 - (177,437) 177,437 -

High Needs Block total* 25,558,437 (42,000) 25,516,437 22,613,697 (2,902,740) 28,764,733 3,248,296

High Need 22/23 

detail budget 

allocation to be 

allocated at the 

Education Board 

in June 2022

Central block 1.4.1 Contribution to combined budgets 579,129 - 579,129 429,888 (149,241) 463,304 (115,825)

1.4.14 Copyright Licenses 137,486 - 137,486 137,486 - 142,987 5,501

1.4.2 School Admissions 275,617 - 275,617 275,617 - 275,617 -

1.4.3 Servicing of School Forums 18,700 - 18,700 18,700 - 18,700 -

X.X Protected Centrally Employed teacher employer pension contribution 95,332 - 95,332 95,332 - 95,332 -

1.5.1/1.5.2/1.5.3 Retained duties* 449,910 - 449,910 449,910 - 445,539 (4,371) 148,513 

Central Block total 1,556,174 - 1,556,174 1,406,933 (149,241) 1,441,479 (114,695)

Grand Total 171,816,976 (42,000) 171,774,976 168,783,874 (2,991,102) 178,147,163 6,372,187

DSG - Funding Income

Schools Block - ISB Retained (24,674,330) - (24,674,330) (24,674,330) - (23,012,723) 1,661,607

Schools Block - ISB Academy Recoupment (108,372,133) - (108,372,133) (108,372,133) - (113,067,102) (4,694,969)

Schools Block - 2223 NNDR Recoupment All Schools (945,863) (945,863)

Schools Block - ISB subtotal (133,046,463) - (133,046,463) (133,046,463) - (137,025,688) (3,979,225)

Growth fund (770,768) (770,768) (770,768) - (790,059) (19,291)

Schools Block subtotal (133,817,231) - (133,817,231) (133,817,231) - (137,815,747) (3,998,516)

Central Block (1,556,174) - (1,556,174) (1,556,174) - (1,441,479) 114,695

Early Years Block (2 year olds) (1,342,532) - (1,342,532) (1,342,532) - (1,240,196) 102,336

Early Years Block (3&4 yr olds - Universal) (7,111,896) - (7,111,896) (7,111,896) - (6,731,510) 380,386

Early Years Block (3&4 yr olds - Additional) (2,163,246) - (2,163,246) (2,163,246) - (1,932,394) 230,852

Early Years Disabilty Access Fund (57,195) - (57,195) (57,195) - (68,000) (10,805)

Early Years Pupil Premium (98,265) - (98,265) (98,265) - (153,104) (54,839)

Early Years DSG final funding adjustment 20/21 - - - 45,322 45,322 

Early years subtotal (10,773,134) - (10,773,134) (10,727,812) 45,322 (10,125,204) 647,930

High Needs Funding Block (17,800,437) 358,667 (17,441,770) (17,441,770) - (19,582,085) (2,140,315)

High Needs Additional DSG supplementary grant - - - - - (1,006,648) (1,006,648)

High Needs Recoupment (7,758,000) (256,667) (8,014,667) (8,014,667) - (8,176,000) (161,333)

High Needs total (25,558,437) 102,000 (25,456,437) (25,456,437) - (28,764,733) (3,308,296)

DSG Funding Total (171,704,976) 102,000 (171,602,976) (171,557,654) 45,322 (178,147,163) (6,544,187)

DSG Reserves Funding - EB Agreed * (112,000) (60,000) (172,000) - 172,000 - 172,000

Total Net DSG Budget - - - (2,773,780) (2,773,780) 0 0

DSG Reserves in totality DSG B/FWD Original Surplus / (Deficit) 1st April 21 4,481,229 - 4,481,229 4,481,229 7,255,009 -

In Year adjustments (112,000) (60,000) (172,000) 2,773,780 - -

DSG C/Fwd Surplus / (Deficit) 31st March 22 4,369,229 (60,000) 4,309,229 7,255,009 7,255,009 -

DSG Reserves 21/22 £'000 Schools ISB Growth De-delegated Early years High Needs Central Total

1st April Surplus / (Deficit) Original 0 182 14 1,105 3,003 177 4,481 

Agreed (Issued to Budget) / Drawn from Budget 21/22* 0 0 0 (112) (60) 0 (172)

Early Years Funding adjustment for prior year 0 0 0 (45) 0 0 (45)

1st April Surplus / (Deficit) Revised 0 182 14 948 2,943 177 4,264 

In year Forecast Outturn variance  Surplus / (Deficit) 0 (61) 0 0 2,903 149 2,991 

Anticipated Early Years funding adjustment for 2122 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Transfer in Year 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

H 31st March Surplus / (Deficit) foreacast 0 121 14 948 5,846 326 7,255 

I Agreed (issue to budget for future years 22/23 and 23/24)* 0 (150) (150)

J Recommend Minimum Reserve balance required * 0 121 14 500 2,301 326 3,263 

H + I - J One off Funding Available for DSG Conditional Use 448 3,395 3,842 

Forecast Outturn* - As reported at the December 2021 Education Board, with the exception of updates for revised growth fund spend in 21/22 (following the Jan 22 updated model) and the HN draw down agreed at the December 2021 Education Board 

Retained Duties * - ongoing funding (former ESG) to support LA Statutory duties - Child and Educational Leadership, Planning and Budget planning, monitoring, Education Welfare and Asset Management

Previously agreed (Issued to Budget) / Drawn from Budget 21/22* - EY drawn down agreed at the December 2019 Education Board, and HN draw down agreed at the December 2021 Education Board

Agreed (issue to budget for future years 22/23 and 23/24)* - 22/23 HN draw down agreed at the December 2021 Education Board

Alternative Provision (non EHCP and LAC Residential Care*) for IP - educational contribution to children who are looked after by the Authority but who do not have an Educational Health and Care Plan

Recommended Minimum Reserve balance required * - Growth, and Central block reserves are all on pre-conditioned Education Board plans to support those area's in future years.  Early Years is recommended to maintain a minium reserve balance of £0.5M (equivalent circa 5% of annual funding) at all 

times, and High Needs at 8% or annual funding due to the high risk spend nature of service provision. 

Schools

14



Appendix 3 - DSG Growth fund rates from Sept-22 and updated rates from Sept-21
If printed, recommend to print in A3 Colour and Landscape Final Original Final Original Est. Est. Est.

2020/21 2021/22 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24* 2024/25 2025/26

Key School census date: Oct-19 Oct-20 Oct-20 Oct-21 Oct-22 Oct-23 Oct-24

Start of Academic year Sep-20 Sep-21 Sep-21 Sep-22 Sep-23 Sep-24 Sep-25

actual census count 15,068            14,995            14,995            14,857            

estimated census count

census growth from previous year -7 -73 -73 -138

% of previous years local growth applied to MSOA growth for the following year 280% 93% 93% 103%

A *MSOA growth from previous year 168 56 56 62

A1 * Local growth (new classes required for this no. of pupils) 60 60 60 -

local growth eqivalent no. of new classes (FYI only) 2 2 2 -

actual census count 11,188            11,455            11,455            11,771            

estimated census count 11,951 12,041 12,071

census growth from previous year 289 267 267 316 180 90 30

% of previous years local growth applied to MSOA growth for the following year 214% 176% 176% 150% 140% 100% 100%

B *MSOA growth from previous year 385 316 316 316 252 90 30

B1 * Local growth (new classes required for this no. of pupils) 180 180 210 180 90 30 0

local growth eqivalent no. of new classes (FYI only) 6 6 7 6 3 1 0

ACA adjustment applied 1.004 1.004 1.004 1.004 1.004 1.004 1.004

C Primary per pupil £1,430 £1,460 £1,460 £1,490 £1,490 £1,490 £1,490

D Secondary per pupil £2,138 £2,183 £2,183 £2,208 £2,208 £2,208 £2,208

Secondary compared to primary ratio 49.5% 49.5% 49.5% 48.1% 48.1% 48.1% 48.1%

E = A * C Primary £240,246 £81,038 £81,038 £92,396 - - -

F = B * D Secondary £822,950 £689,730 £689,730 £697,662 £556,000 £199,000 £66,000

total £1,063,196 £770,768 £770,768 £790,059 £556,000 £199,000 £66,000

Growth fund awarded £1,063,196 £770,768 £770,768 £790,059 £556,000 £199,000 £66,000

G Any local available movement within School Block DSG allocation - £143,076 £143,076 £6,172 - - -

H = E + F + G Final budgetted growth fund - April to March £1,063,196 £913,844 £913,844 £796,231 £556,000 £199,000 £66,000

% % rate uplift from Previous rate 5% 5% 8% 5% 0% 0% 0%

I Primary per pupil £3,158 £3,316 £3,411 £3,582 £3,582 £3,582 £3,582

J Secondary per pupil £3,745 £3,932 £4,045 £4,247 £4,247 £4,247 £4,247

Secondary compared to primary ratio 18.6% 18.6% 18.6% 18.6% 18.6% 18.6% 18.6%

I * 30 Primary £94,740 £99,477 £102,330 £107,460 £107,460 £107,460 £107,460

J * 30 Secondary £112,350 £117,968 £121,350 £127,410 £127,410 £127,410 £127,410

Primary * £255,130 £195,007 £198,335 £85,275 - - -

Secondary * £607,600 £693,761 £776,388 £799,873 £541,493 £233,585 £53,088

K Total growth fund forecast - April to March £862,730 £888,768 £974,723 £885,148 £541,493 £233,585 £53,088

K - H overspend / (underspend) (£200,466) (£25,076) £60,879 £88,917 (£14,508) £34,585 (£12,913)

Cumulative overspend / (underspend) (£182,355) (£207,431) (£121,476) (£32,559) (£47,067) (£12,482) (£25,394)

Primary (Years R - 6) £2,867 £3,134 £3,134 £3,228 £3,228 £3,228 £3,228

Secondary (KS3 - Year 7 - 9) £4,032 £4,420 £4,420 £4,552 £4,552 £4,552 £4,552

Secondary compared to primary ratio 40.6% 41.0% 41.0% 41.0% 41.0% 41.0% 41.0%

* MSOA "Middle Super Output area" - defined by office for the national statistics and school postcode information.  Schools are categorised into MSOA population area's and only positive growth within that area is counted

* Local growth (new classes required for this no. of pupils) - as agreed by the School Admissions team and please note this can only ever be best esimate up until the Sept intakes are confirmed

* 2023/24 - Note this year and onwards are forecast estimates for planning purposes only. 

* Growth funding methodology - is managed on a long term basis, allowing any one year to either over or underspend provided the total allocation of growth is affordable within the life cycle of the planned growth

* MSOA growth from previous year - For forecasting processes is caveated that this is again, best esimates for future years. Determined by Final Oct census no.s of each year, and what would fall into MSOA growth is subject to a number of variations outside of the 

planned school class growth alone.  This Model will therefore be updated each year, once the DfE have supplied the actual growth fund amount for the following financial year.

* Growth funding forecast appliicable for maintained schools is 7/12's of the year only, as their core DSG funding is applied and updated from April.  Academy core DSG funding applies from Sept, so a full years growth funding is applied before that years new intake 

class is included in their core DSG allocation.

Local Growth 

fund rates 

Growth funded unit 

rates for each 

academic year

Equivalent annual 

funding to support 

a new class

Growth funding 

forecast *

FYI only
NFF local AWPU 

Rate

DfE Calculated 

Growth fund

DSG Financial Year - April to March

Primary Pupil no.s

Secondary Pupil 

no.s

DfE unit funding 

rate

15



Appendix 4 - Early Years funding rates 22/23 - Col. A and provisional allocation

A B A - B

Funded rate in 

per hour

Budgetted 

PTE

Total Funding in 

£'000

Funded 

rate out 

per hour

% expected 

take up of 

core 

allocation Budgetted PTE

Total Funding out 

£'000

Funded 

rate in per 

hour

Budgetted 

PTE

Total 

Funding in 

£'000

Funded 

rate out 

per hour

% expected 

take up of 

core 

allocation

Budgetted 

PTE

Total 

Funding out 

£'000

Price 

increase 

per hour

3 & 4 year old universal core 4.71             2,507        6,732             4.53      1.00          2,507                   6,474                    4.54 2,748 7,112 4.38 100% 2,748      6,861        0.15

3 & 4 year old deprivation attached to universal 0.44      0.20          501                      126                       0.44 20% 550         138           0.00

3 & 4 year old centally retained to support universal 0.09      1.00          2,507                   131                       0.07 100% 2,748      113           0.02

Subtotal 6,732             6,732                    7,112        7,112        

3 & 4 year old extended entitlement core 4.71             720           1,932             4.53      1.00          720                      1,859                    4.54 836 2,163 4.38 100% 836         2,087        0.15

3 & 4 year old deprivation attached to extended entitlement 0.44      0.20          144                      36                         0.44 20% 167         42             0.00

3 & 4 year old centally retained to support extended entitlement 0.09      1.00          720                      38                         0.07 100% 836         34             0.02

Subtotal 1,932             1,932                    2,163        2,163        

3 & 4 year old Early years pupil premium 0.60             448           153                0.60      1.00          448                      153                       0.53 325 98 0.53 100% 325         98             0.07

2 year old core 5.61             388           1,240             5.57      1.00          388                      1,231                    5.40 436 1,343 5.36 100% 436         1,333        0.21

2 year old centrally retained to support 2 year olds 0.04      1.00          388                      9                           0.04 100% 436         10             0.00

Subtotal 1,240             1,240                    1,343        1,343        

Grand Total 10,057           10,057                 10,716     10,716     

3&4 year old Disability Access Fund (DAF) - Paid in and out at £800 per child, 

expected for 85 children
68                   68                         57             57             

10,125           10,125                 10,773     10,773     

Local Passport % directly through for 3& 4 year old funding (excludes centrally retained) 98.0% 98.4%

Department for Education minimum requirement for direct passport rate through to Providers 3 & 4 year old funding 95.0% 95.0%

2022/23 2021/22 FYI only

Indicative Indicative Indicative Indicative

16



Report Southend Education Board Page 1 of 3 Report Number V 1.0 

 

Southend-on-Sea Borough Council 
Report of Deputy Chief Executive - People 
and Director of Education and Early Years 

To 

Education Board 
On 

18th January 2022 
Report prepared by: 

Elaine Hammans, Head of Early Years 
 

 
Southend 2050 - Opportunity and Prosperity: 

Our children are school and life ready, and the workforce is highly skilled. 
  

 

 
 

1. Purpose of Report     
 

1.1 To propose to the Education Board the use of funding resources available 
through the Early Years DSG reserve.  

 
 

2. Recommendations  
 
Education Board are asked to agree:     
 
 

2.1 Using the one-off funding resource of £334k over a period of two years, 2022/23 
and 2023/24.  

 
2.2 Use of the funds to support Early Years delivery in: 

 

 Maintaining the development officers outreach activities to reach parents/ 
carers of eligible children who are not accessing their entitlement. 

 To ensure marketing and communication are fully developed using all 
platforms developed with the Communication Team. 

 To provide a dedicated fund so that vulnerable 2-year-olds can access an 
early years place 

 To pilot expanding the inclusion fund to include 2-year-olds with the aim 
of supporting early intervention 

 To support Early Years resource within the Operational, Performance and 
Intelligence team. (OPI) 

 To deliver specific Level three training on supporting children with SEND. 
In line with Southend 2050 outcomes, involve childcare providers active 
participation in design and roll out of training programmes. 
 

2.3 And update the Education Board over the course of the 2 years, as to the 
effectiveness of these funds. 

 
 

17

3



Report Southend Education Board Page 2 of 3 Report Number V 1.0 

 

3. Background/Context 
 

3.1The DSG early years balance is in a very favourable and healthy financial position. After 
retaining the recommended minimum £500k reserves to support any fluctuations in EY 
DSG funding, there is still an available £448k reserve balance. This proposal is for a one-
off spend of £334k over the next two years to support maximum uptake of all early years 
funding. The welcome increase in base rates to providers along with the increase in Early 
Years Pupil Premium – covered elsewhere in the papers - enables a large proportion of 
the outstanding reserves to be utilised in ways that will best support outcomes for families 
and childcare providers in Southend.  
 
All areas of this one-off funding will be reviewed annually to ensure that the best use is 
being made of the available funds. The uplift in provider funding rates for the next three 
years as announced in the latest spending review, will allow for consideration of 
mainstreaming some of the initiatives in this one-off spend.  
. 
Funding request 
3.2 In 2019 Early years identified the lack of resource to support outreach to 
parents/carers to inform them of their entitlement, to fully maximise the targeted two-year-
old funding for our most deprived children and ensure that all children are accessing 
universal three- and four-year-old entitlement. Parents/carers are able to work through 
maximising extended entitlement and tax-free childcare.  
 
EY DSG reserve funding was used to resource the outreach team for two years up to 31 
March 2022.The outreach team have been extremely successful and early years are 
keen to extend and maintain this role for the next two years. We know that there is far 
more to be done to engage eligible parents/carers across Southend. 
 
3.3 To use available reserves to develop marketing materials/resources to publicise the 
entitlements to parents/carers and to maximise the opportunity for parents/carers to 
understand their entitlements and how to access them. 
 
3.4 The criteria for 2-year-old entitlement have not changed for some years. The 
consequences are that some of our most vulnerable families are marginally over the 
funding threshold or have family issues not covered by the criteria for two-year-old 
funding entitlement. These children are in danger of slipping through the net and many 
would benefit from a childcare place. The proposed fund would allow 15 children and 
families identified by appropriate agencies to be able to access up to 15 hours per week 
childcare.  
 
3.5 Providers have reported 2-year-olds attending since the Covid outbreak have far 
greater individual needs especially communication and language and PSED including 
self-regulation. These children were born just before or during lockdown and experienced 
the greatest impact of isolation and lack of social interaction.  In addition, many children 
with complex SEND and/or medical needs are too young at 2 years old to have been 
awarded Disability Living Allowance (DLA) or have an Education, Health and Care Plan 
(EHCP) in place. Expanding the inclusion fund to provide support for two-year-olds 
before formal assessment takes place would allow for intervention to take place earlier in 
the child’s life. 
 
3.6 The dedicated resource from the OPI over the last two years has supported the 
development towards a self-sustaining management information report system. However, 

18



Report Southend Education Board Page 3 of 3 Report Number V 1.0 

 

due to Covid, the priority has been to be fully reactive to meet the needs of families, 
sustain childcare providers, and meet Government temporary requirements – such as 
daily attendance information. Therefore we propose to continue this resource for the next 
two years to ensure that all reports and systems are in place. 
 
3.7 Early years would like to continue the successful implementation of the Level 3 
qualification for SENCO’s to further develop a full training programme to ensure the 
highest quality provision for funded children. Covid has caused a huge financial strain on 
childcare providers, and this is continuing due to the loss of private income from wrap 
around care as people continue to work from home. Private income has long subsidised 
funded places. This means providers are not in a place to fund training. 
 
3.8 Proposed estimated use of the available funds for the two year period: 
    
 

Outreach team £85,000  

Marketing and Communication £5,000  

2-year-old childcare places £92,000  

Expanding inclusion fund £50,000 

OPI resource for development £92,000 

Training programme £10,000  

Total £334,000 

4. Summary of benefits of the proposal 
 

 
4.1   Poverty Agenda 

 
The funding proposal will enable the council to:  

 Maximise the available budget for Early Years DSG 

 Ensure children and families are fully aware of all entitlements. Targeting those 
children and families living in the most vulnerable households 

 Meet the statutory duties to provide information, advice and assistance to parents 
and prospective parents. 

 
5. Implications of the report 
 

5.1 If the proposal is approved as detailed in 3.8 this will enable the staff members to 
continue in their roles, proposed additional publicity activities to go ahead, and provide 
additional support for our most vulnerable families and those most affected by the 
impact of Covid. It will also provide an opportunity for the childcare workforce to upskill 
and ensure that fully inclusive practice is embedded within our settings. 

 
 

19



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Dedicated Schools Grant Budget 2022/23
	Appendices DSG

	3 Early Years DSG Reserve

